
 

 

 
Gig Harbor 

City Council Meeting 
 

March 23, 2009 
6:00 p.m. 



AGENDA FOR 
GIG HARBOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 23, 2009 – 6:00 p.m. 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Approval of the Minutes of City Council Meeting of Mar. 9, 2009. 
2. Receive and File: a) Parks Commission Minutes of Jan. 7 and Feb. 4, 2009; b) 

GHPD Monthly Report. c) Salary Commission Minutes March 11, 2009. 
3. Correspondence / Proclamations: a) Parks Appreciation Day; b) AWC Retro Refund 

Check. 
4. Liquor Licenses:  a) Renewals: GH Farmers Market Assoc.; Qdoba Mexican Grill; 

The Green Turtle; Harbor Greens; Gig Harbor Farmers Market; Maritime Inn. b) 
Application in Lieu of Current Privilege: The Inn at Gig Harbor. 

5. Resolution No. 787– Surplus Equipment.  
6. Hearing Examiner Services Contract – Second Amendment. 
7. Re-appointment to Arts Commission. 
8. Borgen Parcel for Cushman Trail Restroom Site – Property Purchase. 
9. Public Art Placement – “Ring in the Salmon” Bell at Donkey Creek Park. 
10. Hunt/Wollochet Signal Project – WA Water Right-of-Way Agreement.  
11. Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project - Change Order No. 1. 
12. Approval of Payment of Bills for March 23, 2009: Checks #60505 through #60630 in 

the amount of $585,966.28. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: Parks Appreciation Day. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Public Hearing and First Reading of Ordinance - Harbor Hill Water Tank and 

Mainline Extension Latecomers Agreement.  
2. Second Reading of Ordinance – Burnham / Sehmel Annexation. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:    
1. First Reading of Ordinance – Creating a Federal Drug Investigation Fund. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT / COUNCIL COMMENTS:  



ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER MEETINGS: 
1. Planning & Building Committee – Monday, Apr. 6th at 5:15 p.m. 
2. Operations & Public Projects Committee – Thursday, Apr. 16th at 3:00 p.m.  
3. Finance / Safety Committee: Mon. Apr. 20th at 4:00 p.m. 
4. Council Workstudy Session- 2009 Workplan – Mon. Apr. 20th at 5:30 p.m. 
5. Boards & Commission Candidate Review: Mon. Apr. 27th at 4:30 p.m. 
6. Volunteer Appreciation Event: Mon. Apr. 27th at 5:00 p.m. 
7. GH North Traffic Options Committee – Wednesday, May 20th, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  For the purpose of discussion potential litigation and 
enforcement action per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i). 
 
ADJOURN: 



Page 1 of 11 

 GIG HARBOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF MARCH 9, 2009 
 
PRESENT:  Councilmembers Ekberg, Young, Franich, Conan, Malich, Payne, 
Kadzik and Mayor Hunter.  
 
CALL TO ORDER:  6:01 p.m.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Approval of the Minutes of City Council Meeting of Feb.23, 2009. 
2. Receive and File: a) Boards / Commission Candidate Review Feb. 23, 2009; b) Gig 

Harbor North Traffic Operations Committee Feb. 25, 2009; c) Operations Committee 
Minutes Feb. 19, 2009; d) Prudential Spirit of Community Letter.  

3. Liquor License Actions: a) Change of Corporate Officers – Moctezumas; b) Added 
Privilege – Harbor Kitchen; c) Special Occasion – Prison Pet Partnership;  
d) Application – Sip at the Wine Bar & Restaurant. 

4. Appointment to the Parks Commission. 
5. Appointment to the Arts Commission. 
6. WWTP Ph. 1 Improvement Project – Escrow Agreement for Retainage. 
7. Sewer Outfall Extension – DNR Easement. 
8. Eddon Boat – Oversight Remedial Action Grant Agreement. 
9. Approval of Payment of Bills for March 9, 2009: Checks #60366 through #60504 in 

the amount of $855,506.06. 
10. Approval of Payroll for the month of February: Checks #5372 through #5393 and 

direct deposits in the amount of $334,255.75. 
 
MOTION: Move to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented. 
   Ekberg / Young – unanimously approved.  
 

Councilmember Kadzik recognized Lane Landry, newest member of the Gig Harbor Arts 
Commission. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Second Reading of Ordinance – Truck Weight Limits on Pioneer Way.  David 
Stubchaer, Public Works Director, explained the changes made to the ordinance from 
the last meeting and the rationale behind the added language. He added that there 
would be signage, public outreach and an education process. 
 
Bill Fogerty – 3614 Butler Drive.  Mr. Fogerty said that as a business owner on Pioneer 
he sees large trucks coming down that hill and so “teeth” are needed in the ordinance to 
ensure compliance. He added that he would appreciate something that he could hand 
out to delivery truck drivers explaining the alternate routes. 
 
 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 2 of 11 

 MOTION: Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1155 adding Chapter 10.16 Truck Weight 
Limits on Pioneer Way. 

   Payne / Conan -  
 
AMENDMENT: Move to replace the word “if” with “when” in exemptions number 3, 5, 

and 6. 
 Young / Payne – unanimously approved. 
 
Kit Kuhn – (no address given).  Mr. Kuhn asked that the businesses that have produce 
deliveries be notified of the change to forward to the delivery truck drivers so they could 
avoid a fine. 
 
MAIN MOTION: Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1155 as amended. 
 Payne / Conan – unanimously approved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:    
1. First and Final Reading of Ordinance – Burnham Sehmel Annexation. Tom Dolan, 
Planning Director, gave a brief background for this annexation. He explained that this is 
the first and final reading of the ordinance adopting this area into the city.  He noted that 
he passed out a map with the pre-annexation zoning designations.  
 
Councilmember Malich pointed out that zoning designation P-I was not listed in the 
ordinance. Mr. Dolan acknowledged the error and said it would be corrected. 
 
Councilmember Franich asked how the zoning was determined. Mr. Dolan responded 
that these zones were established several years ago when the Urban Growth Areas 
were formed. He commented that there is a pending Comp Plan Amendment for 
property owned by Walt Smith that would be reviewed in April.  He then explained the 
reason that the annexation boundary doesn’t match the Urban Growth Boundary line is 
because of a County requirement to prevent annexation of partial parcels. 
 
Paul Garrison – 8306 131st – Wauna.  Mr. Garrison explained a problem with the zoning 
designation of his property within the annexation area on Sehmel Drive.  He said that 
property was listed as ED on the Comp Plan Map, but RB-1 on the annexation zoning 
map. He asked why they were being down-zoned.   
 
Tom Dolan responded that there are inconsistencies between the Comp Plan Map and 
the Zoning Map. When the zoning for the property was established and a public meeting 
was held, Council indicated a desire to rezone the property in accordance with the 
previously established zoning of RB-1.  He noted that this has been discussed with Mr. 
Garrison. He continued to explain that the annexation has gone through the entire 
process with the understanding that zoning would be RB-1, adding that he doesn’t 
believe that Council has the ability to change the zoning at this point.  He said that a 
rezone to ED is a strong possibility because the Comprehensive Plan indicates it is an 
appropriate zoning designation.  He acknowledged that Mr. Garrison has a potential 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 3 of 11 

tenant that requires the ED designation and said that staff would do what they can to 
expedite the rezone. He said that generally this would take six months. 
 
Council had questions about the property and Mr. Dolan asked Mr. Garrison to respond. 
 
Mr. Garrison responded that the total acreage on this particular parcel is 8.5 – 9 acres, 
and said that there are also two other property owners wishing for the same ED 
designation. He stressed that a RB-1 zoning designation would create a hardship in 
keeping his steel buildings occupied, and if a rezone effort is challenged it would cost 
both time and money.  He explained that if the zoning isn’t changed, any new tenants 
would have to meet the RB-1 criteria which would make it difficult to fill the building. He 
said he owes money on the property, and it isn’t right to bankrupt somebody who has 
been here such a long time. He then said that he and Mr. Dolan discussed adding 
product services to the Employment District so that the prospective tenant could lease 
and if the zoning is changed to ED, the existing tenants would then be conforming uses. 
He finalized by saying if Council adopts the ordinance tonight all the existing uses would 
become non-conforming; and if someone leaves he wouldn’t be able to find a tenant. 
 
Councilmember Young said that he views this as a mistake and asked about a quick 
way to do an area-wide rezone. Angela Belbeck, City Attorney, explained that one 
approach would be to redo the pre-annexation zoning. Mr. Dolan voiced concern that 
surrounding property owners might take exception to the change. He said that a public 
process would be required which is the responsibility of the Hearing Examiner. He 
offered to research this and come back with information at the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Garrison said that if this ordinance is passed the city would be rezoning his property 
and this is the only public meeting he has had the opportunity to attend.  
 
Councilmembers asked about the notification process. Mr. Dolan said that all property 
owners within the annexation were notified of the public meeting. He said that although 
he didn’t work for the city at the time, he assumed that the pre-annexation zoning was 
done through the public process as well. 
 
Councilmember Franich asked about the need for a transition zone.  Mr. Dolan 
explained that single-family residential is widely scattered at this area, and the parcels 
are quite large. He noted that Mr. Garrison’s property has a County zoning designation 
similar to ED, but which doesn’t allow boat repair. If it had, the space could have been 
leased. 
 
Craig Campbell – 6225 Point Glover Lane, Pt. Orchard.  Mr. Campbell explained that he 
owns the mini-storage on the corner of Sehmel and Burnham, one parcel away from Mr. 
Garrison’s and with an existing use for approximately 30 years.  He said that his 
property is coming into the city with an R-1 zoning designation. He pointed out that his 
property and those adjacent to his, back up to the on-ramp to the freeway and for this 
reason, no one would want to live there; it is silly to think it would be zoned R-1.  He 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 4 of 11 

said he has considerable debt on the property and would be hurt if not allowed to 
rezone to an appropriate designation. 
 
Dino Foremiller – 2641 64th Street.  Mr. Foremiller, owner of the two-acre piece between 
Mr. Garrison and Mr. Campbell adjacent to Highway 16, said there is no way for 
residences to be built there; this is commercial property and always has been. He said 
that the previous owner had a building permit for a large building that lapsed in 2005. 
He said if he had known this would be zoned residential he would never have bought it. 
 
Barb Magnusson – proponent for the annexation.  Ms. Magnusson explained that she is 
unsure of how long the petition signatures are good for. She said she made it clear for 
those signing the annexation petition to be careful to check the zoning, but guessed that 
some didn’t know. She added that Mr. Garrison didn’t sign the annexation petition but 
several others have.  She then said that if they are not required to collect signatures 
again and the County approval is okay for a time, then she has no problem with 
postponing this for a month.   
 
Tom Dolan addressed Council’s questions. He explained that he met with Mr. Garrison 
in November and discussed an option for him to file for a rezone. He was unaware that 
there were other property owners in that triangle and so it now appears that an area-
wide rezone is a more appropriate action. 
 
Councilmember Young apologized to Ms. Magnuson, saying that the R-1 and RB-1 
zoning doesn’t seem to fit. He said that doesn’t want to lose more ED property and so 
adoption of the ordinance tonight isn’t appropriate. He then voiced suspicion that the 
pre-annexation zoning on these properties came about before the ED designation was 
ever developed.   
 
After further discussion, Staff was directed to come back at the next meeting with a 
recommendation for a solution. 

 
2. Public Hearing and First Reading of Ordinance – Height Restriction Area. Tom 
Dolan presented the background on this text amendment to the process to remove 
property from the height restriction area. He outlined several options for how Council 
could proceed including one similar to a comp plan amendment in which the Council 
makes the final decision. He explained that this text amendment is proposing that the 
process be handled as a Type 3 rather than a Type 4 process to address the current 
conflict in the code.  
 
Mr. Dolan addressed questions.  He explained that the recommendation by the 
Planning Commission to adopt this draft ordinance is an effort to rectify criteria which 
are inconsistent with the intent of the height restriction area discovered during the 
Historical Society project.  He said that he pointed out process alternatives to address 
concerns with this proposed ordinance.   
 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 5 of 11 

Councilmember Payne voiced concern with the lack of definition for the terms “block 
views” and “substantially block views.”  Mr. Dolan said that the Planning Commission 
didn’t understand the previous term “restrict” and wanted to come up with a different 
description of view impairment. He said there is nothing in the code that defines that 
term and it would be left up to the decision maker. 
 
Councilmember Young asked for clarification for why removal from the height restriction 
area needs to go to the Hearing Examiner rather than coming before Council, adding 
that he is reluctant to add this process to the Comp Plan procedure.  Mr. Dolan said that 
it could come before Council, but questioned whether it would be a legislative or quasi-
judicial decision.  He pointed out that the difficulty in making quasi-judicial decisions was 
the reason that Council formally deferred those types of matters to the Hearing 
Examiner process.  Ms. Belbeck clarified that it would remain a quasi-judicial matter 
because it affects property rights. 
 
Mr. Dolan explained that the downside to changing this to a Comp Plan process; it could 
potentially take up to two years. Councilmember Young pointed out that it could also 
open up the door for future state involvement. 
 
Councilmember Payne expressed concern for who would have the burden of proof in 
Section 17.62.040(B)(2) and what the term “any view” means.  He agreed that the 
attempt to marry intent with criteria is very important. 
 
Councilmember Kadzik said he is uncomfortable with the process for these types of 
decisions leaving City Council to go to the Hearing Examiner.  
 
Mayor Hunter opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Bill Fogerty – 3614 Butler Drive.  Mr. Fogerty said he wanted to clarify the record for the 
Halsan application of two weeks ago. He said that the first meeting notification sent by 
Mr. Halsan only went to property owners on Butler Drive, not Shyleen or Lewis Street. 
He continued to say that his concern is this ordinance is another attempt by the 
proponents to get around the 27 foot height restriction at the top of the hill. Mr. Halsan’s 
application says “ideally, we would develop a single, multi-level structure where office 
and some limited retail uses would use the ground floor.  Office uses would be located 
on the second floor and residential on the top floor.”  Mr. Fogerty said that it would be 
back up to three stories; this ordinance is a way to get around the height restriction at 
the top of the view basin. 
 
Mark Hoppen – 8133 Shirley Avenue.  Mr. Hoppen stressed that the oldest issue in Gig 
Harbor is building height, citing an example from the 50’s. He said that there may need 
to be an exception to the code as it relates to residential. He explained that properties at  
the peak of town that don’t block other’s views will build daylight basements and shove 
the structures forward causing problems for side views from adjacent houses.  He then 
addressed commercial property explaining that the problem is bulk and scale. He asked 
Council to first consider height, both in and out of the height overlay district, in transition 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 6 of 11 

zones adjacent to residential to be consistent with the surrounding neighborhood. The 
second issue he asked Council to consider is keeping the bulk, scale and square 
footage consistency with the surrounding neighborhood; then lifting the height restriction 
in places that don’t block views wouldn’t be an issue. 
 
Kit Kuhn – 3104 Shyleen Street.  Mr. Kuhn said he is not in favor of raising the heights. 
He agreed with the comments made by Mr. Hoppen about bulk and scale. He said there 
is a reason that everything is terraced in Gig Harbor and if you raise the heights, then 
it’s going to slowly get out of scale and be out of character with what’s existing. He said 
that a change in the height restriction affects not only the downtown, but the whole city. 
He stressed that the height restriction is there for a reason.  
 
Carl Halsan – applicant for the text amendment.  Mr. Halsan stressed that the Council 
needs to focus on the Planning Commission’s recommendation, explaining that when 
this effort began 3-1/2 years ago, it was simply to match the criteria with the intent of the 
code as a result of the process to remove the Historical Society property from the height 
restriction area. At that time, the Hearing Examiner pointed out that the criteria for 
removal doesn’t match the intent of the code to protect people’s view of the bay, the 
sound and Mount Rainier. He said that discussion on who should make the decision, 
whether it should be a Comp Plan Amendment and whether the view is up or down the 
hill should be saved for a later date and asked Council to adopt this Planning 
Commission recommendation to have the current criteria match the current intent, and 
which has been blessed by the City Attorney. He said to consider anything else under 
the guise of this process is not fair. 
 
John McMillan – 98816 Jacobsen Lane.  Mr. McMillan said that the community needs 
more time to look at this sensitive issue. He said that it is biased when an applicant 
conducts a forum to make the public aware that something may happen. He continued 
to say that there should be more information from someone other than the applicant, 
and more time for review with anything that has to do with heights in the view basin. 
 
Guy Hoppen – 8402 Goodman Drive.  Mr. Hoppen said that this draft ordinance leans 
heavily on views with regard to height restriction. He read a section from the ordinance 
taken from the city’s comprehensive plan, adding that what was left out was the next 
phrase “the neighborhood design area policies that seek to maintain the design 
characteristics of these neighborhoods to preserve their character.”  Mr. Hoppen said 
that this means scale and balance; when you increase the bulk and size of a building it 
affects the balance of a neighborhood.  He suggested that if you are going to define 
adjacent properties and what a view means, then you also have to define neighborhood 
character and design characteristics as well. He agreed that the community needs time 
to digest all the information then encouraged Council to inform the community well in 
advance of any action on the Paul Brothers’ project.  He explained that it is all about 
scale and balance, same as when Ordinance No. 995 was adopted four years ago and 
the citizens filled the Council Chambers to share how they felt about the BDR Building 
being out of scale with the downtown. 
 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 7 of 11 

Kit Kuhn - 3104 Shyleen Street.  Mr. Kuhn asked Council to not to get fooled that view is 
only about water or mountains; view can be what you see across from you.  
 
 Mayor Hunter closed the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Franich said that he empathizes and agrees with a lot of what has been 
said, and that he also understands Mr. Halsan’s desire to make the standards meet the 
intent. He said that he wonders about the reasoning behind Ordinance No. 537 
designating the height restriction area and whether it was just about blocking views from 
adjacent property owners or if it was more about balance in the view basin area. He 
said that language may need to be added to the code to address balance, scale and 
character. 
 
Councilmember Young clarified that the existing code predates the city’s first 
comprehensive plan and doesn’t address bulk, scale and character. He said that the 
height restriction area was passed to protect views, but what is being discussed is 
restricting height for other reasons as well.  This draft ordinance amends the process to 
have property removed from the height restriction area if reasonable, but it doesn’t 
mean that we don’t need to think about height as it affects bulk and scale particularly in 
transition zones. He agreed that we need a sensible process and said he is going to do 
further research before the next meeting to determine, for example, whether or not this 
should be a quasi-judicial process heard by Council. 
 
Councilmember Payne asked why this is just now coming to Council when the Planning 
Commission made their recommendation in April.  Mr. Dolan clarified that Council held 
a first reading on an ordinance on May 27, 2008 and requested changes to the 
verbiage. Staff worked on those changes but the applicant chose not to provide 
revisions until after the first of this year. He then said that the revisions did not go back 
to the Planning Commission.  
 
Councilmembers asked for clarification on what changes to the wording had been made 
and by whom.  
 
Carl Halsan responded that the main change was in section 17.62.040(B) (2), adding 
that the city attorney worked with them to find less ambiguous language. 
 
Councilmember Franich stressed that because this is a critical part of the code, it’s 
important to keep it as tight as possible adding that he thinks the word “restrict” is better 
than “block” when addressing views. He recommended a review of the height restriction 
map to make sure all the parcels that should be are included. 
 
Councilmember Conan said that he has the same concerns over the terms “block” and 
“restrict.” He said that Ordinance 537 basically set up areas that wouldn’t have to 
comply with height restrictions. This approach has now been switched to areas that 
would have to comply, resulting in an intent that doesn’t meet the criteria. Unfortunately, 
much of the code has been reversed engineered like this. He said there is a big 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 8 of 11 

difference between “restrict” and “block” and it would be difficult to define terms like 
“substantial”. He said that the criteria for blocked or restricted views are what need to be 
established. 
 
Councilmember Malich said he would like to see the procedure changed to Type 4 in 
Chapter 19 as well. He commented that this issue is too important to let the Hearing 
Examiner decide. He said that scale and balance needs to be incorporated into the 
ordinance so that it doesn’t just address views; it also should reflect the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Councilmember Franich read from Ordinance 537 then recommended that everyone 
decide whether some of the intent from this original ordinance has been left out of this 
proposed text amendment.  
 
Councilmember Payne cited bulk, scale and view from the harbor as three things not 
being addressed. He shared the history of the original height restriction area when the 
original intent was protecting views and Mayor Jake Bujacich went around with a 16’ 
board to determine if that would be an appropriate height limit.  He stressed that bulk 
and scale is regulated elsewhere in the code.  The task given the Planning Commission 
was to marry the criteria to intent, and whatever is needed should be done soon. He 
said he would be interested in the conversation on whether we change the process to 
be quasi-judicial by Council or leave it with the Hearing Examiner. 
 
Tom Dolan suggested that workstudy session may be needed in order to review all the 
information. He reminded Council that this is a private text amendment and so there is 
no obligation to render a decision at the next meeting. 
 
Councilmember Kadzik said that there aren’t many differences in the existing code and 
these proposed changes; mostly this will make it easier for the Hearing Examiner. He 
said there seems to be two issues: 1) dissatisfaction with the underlying regulation and 
2) loss of control. He said that direction to staff is necessary on whether to proceed with 
this draft ordinance or to change the regulations to reflect what has been discussed 
tonight. 
 
Councilmember Payne responded that we may want to clean up the existing code then 
move forward to address the other concerns. 
 
Councilmember Franich said that Ordinance 557 spells out the rationale for adoption 
but it isn’t clearly reflected in the intent statement. He said that he agrees that these 
decisions should come to Council, adding that the height restriction area map needs to 
be reviewed to see if it reflects where we are trying to go with this. He expressed 
concern that the existing criterion makes it very hard for any property to be removed; 
but to change the language to say the parcel doesn’t need to possess a view is huge.  
 
After further discussion, Council agreed to discuss this at the Joint Planning 
Commission Workstudy session on March 16th.  

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 9 of 11 

 
3. Pioneer Way Brick Planter – Construction Contract and Materials Testing Contract 
Award. David Stubchaer presented the background information on this contract to 
reconstruct the planter at the end of Pioneer. He said that they anticipate construction to 
be completed by May and answered questions on the project design which is intended 
to dovetail with future improvements to that intersection.  
 
Councilmember Young asked where the funding for this project is identified in the 
budget. Mr. Stubchaer responded that the funding is from the Harborview / Judson / 
Pioneer Improvement Project. He said that other options that are being considered for 
the remainder of this fund are the pedestrian crosswalk on Pioneer, reconstruction of 
Uddenberg Street, and improvements in front of Skansie Park.  
 
Councilmember Young pointed out that the brick planter is a substantial financial 
commitment by the city to a single property owner. 
 
Steven Lynn – 9014 Peacock Hill Avenue. Mr. Lynn said that this is a non-residential 
area with businesses open during the day. He suggested exploring the cost of doing the 
work at night instead. 
 
Bill Fogerty – 3614 Butler Drive.  Mr. Fogerty said that boats on 20 or 30 foot trailers 
come around Harborview then up Pioneer to back around and get into the boatyard at 
that location; he cited one example that took 45 minutes and blocked all three lanes in 
the intersection. He asked Council to take this into consideration suggesting that the 
streetlight has to be moved. 
 
Carl Moraldi – 8223 Goodman Drive NW.  Mr. Moraldi addressed this concern. He 
explained that the shipyard will no longer have long trucks or trailers backing in that 
spot; there is an alternative entrance and a fence is being installed. 
 
Councilmember Payne asked staff to explore the cost of night construction. Rob 
Karlinsey recommended keeping the cost to a minimum with daytime construction. He 
stressed that traffic will be allowed through and it is a relatively short construction 
period. Council still asked that staff bring back the information. 
 
 MOTION: Move to authorize the award and execution of a public works contract to 

RW Scott Construction in the amount of $124,912.00 and authorize the 
Public Works Director to approve additional expenditures up to $12,491 to 
cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders. 

   Payne / Malich – unanimously approved. 
 
David Stubchaer responded to questions about the need for materials testing. He said 
that this is to test the concrete strength to ensure that it meets state standards, and is 
part of quality control for this project. 
 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 10 of 11 

 MOTION: Move to authorize the award and execution of a consultant services 
contract to GeoResources LLC, for materials testing services in an 
amount not to exceed $3,773.00 and approve additional expenditures up 
to $377.00 to cover any cost increases that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 

   Payne / Malich – six voted yes. Councilmember Franich voted no. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  
1. Greater Peninsula Partnership. Rob Karlinsey referenced the brochure produced 
in-house by Lita Dawn Stanton. He said the city has been working in partnership with 
other agencies to unify transportation needs and this brochure was produced as an 
informational tool to make sure we aren’t forgotten in Olympia. 

 
2. Frontage Road Issue. Angela Belbeck, City Attorney reported that at the last 
meeting, Mr. Siegel presented information regarding a 1958 Warranty Deed wherein the 
state promised property owners to build a frontage road from Rosedale along Highway 
16. She said that she has reviewed the document and agrees that the deed clearly 
requires the state to build the frontage road and concurred with what Mr. Siegel said 
about his meeting with members of WSDOT and the Attorney General’s Office who 
agreed that the state has the obligation to build the road. Ms. Belbeck said that one 
potential issue is the deed says the road will be constructed “at a future date” with no 
pinpoint in time. She said that part of the transaction was the property owners’ 
temporary right to access the existing road until the frontage road is built; that temporary 
right has been in existence for 51 years. Ms. Belbeck said that at this point it is between 
the property owners and the state, adding that the state has presented documentation 
showing construction costs of 2-4 million dollars for the road.  She said that there isn’t a 
lot the city can do to enforce this because we are not party to the agreement, but if 
Council would like to adopt any policy decisions to communicate with the state, the 
opportunity is there. 
 
Rob Karlinsey announced that Senator Kilmer has submitted a Transportation Request 
for design of this project. He added that he would like the city’s lobbyist to monitor this 
request and pointed out that the state would keep the lead on this project.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Dawn Saddler – 7508 Pioneer Way.  Ms. Saddler voiced concern for the property 
across from her on Pioneer that has three buildings that are decayed, rotten, and rodent 
infested. She said that the grounds are covered with garbage, saying nothing has been 
done in the 18 years she has been here. She saw a rat run into her yard from there and 
said she is concerned about things such as the Ebola Virus. She stressed that this is a 
dangerous condition and people looking to buy her house are concerned. She asked for 
an ordinance to condemn structures when they reach this level of decay. 
 
Councilmembers discussed the need for a nuisance ordinance of our own to address 
public health issues such as this.  Mr. Karlinsey reported that he has been in 

Consent Agenda - 1



Page 11 of 11 

discussions with the property owner who in ensuring the city that they plan to demolish 
the structures preparing the site for sale.  
 
MAYOR’S REPORT / COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
 
Mayor Hunter reported that the Canterwood Boulevard Ribbon Cutting Ceremony this 
afternoon went well. 
 
Councilmember Young said that the Pierce County Regional Council was holding a 
special meeting to discuss a stimulus package that favors the Port of Tacoma. He said 
that there is a movement by other cities to support limitations on the amount going to 
the Port because they have bonding capacity and other ways to pay for their project. He 
described the ranking process. He asked if the other Councilmembers would like him to 
attend and vote in favor of the 1/3 limitation. Councilmembers responded that they are 
okay with it. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER MEETINGS: 
1. St. Anthony’s Opening Celebration – Fri. March 13th 6:00 p.m. 
2. Operations and Public Projects Committee – Thu. Mar. 19th at 3:00 p.m. 
3. Finance Safety Committee – Moved from Mar. 16th to Apr. 20th. 
4. Joint City Council / Planning Commission Worksession: Mon. Mar. 16th at 5:15 p.m. 
5. Planning & Building Committee – Monday, Apr. 6th at 5:15 p.m.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: To discuss pending and potential litigation per RCW 
42.30.110(1)(i). 
  
 MOTION: Move to go into Executive Session at 8:32 p.m. for approximately fifteen 

minutes 
  Kadzik / Payne – unanimously approved. 
 
 MOTION: Move to return to regular session at 8:47 p.m. 
  Malich / Conan – unanimously approved. 
 MOTION: Move to have legal counsel prepare a Motion to Reconsider for the Court 

of Appeals for the Courtyards at Skansie case. 
  Young / Conan – unanimously approved. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
 MOTION: Move to adjourn at 8:48 p.m. 
  Conan / Malich – unanimously approved. 
         CD recorder utilized: 
         Tracks 1001 – 1047 
        
               
_________________________ _  ____________________________  
Charles L. Hunter, Mayor    Molly Towslee, City Clerk 

Consent Agenda - 1



CITY OF GIG HARBOR 
COMMITTEE OUTLINE MINUTES 

 
Parks Commission 

 
 

Date: January 7, 2009_________        Time:  5:30 p.m.        Location: Community Rooms A&B          Scribe:_Terri Reed 
 
Commission Members and Staff Present: Commissioners: Michael Perrow, Nick Tarabochia, Jacquie Goodwill and Emily Cross; 
Staff Members: David Stubchaer and Terri Reed. 
 
Others Present: _____________________________________________________________________________________  
 

Page 1 
 

Topic / Agenda Item Main Points Discussed Recommendation/Action 
Follow-up (if needed) 

Approval of Minutes Approval of December 3, 2008 Minutes 
  
  

Motion:  Move to approve December 3, 2008 
minutes as presented. 
 
Tarabochia / Cross – unanimously approved. 

OLD BUSINESS:   
Wilkinson Farm Park Project Gary Williamson, representing Friends of 

Wilkinson Farm (FWF), thanked City staff for 
removing the first row of holly and blackberries 
to make more room for the garden project.  Mr. 
Williamson also mentioned all the work that 
Dave Wheeler has contributed and his success 
getting contributions for the projects. 
 
Bill Bowers from the YMCA explained their 
program plan for January and distributed a list 
of work to be performed by Friends & Servants 
staff, teen program participants and community 
volunteers. 

The Parks Commission gave their support for 
the January projects and asked the group to 
forward a suggested project list to the Parks 
Commission for consideration each month.  

Harborview Drive Street End Park 
(Old Ferry Landing Viewpoint)  
 

A survey showing the end of Harborview Drive 
right-of-way was reviewed.  Public Works 
Director David Stubchaer explained that the 
City will be expanding the road by moving the 
centerline stripe and legitimizing 5-6 parking 
spots near the street end. He also added that 
the Police Department has agreed to add 
patrols to the park area. 

Motion:  Move to recommend to City to 
continue with plan of creating pedestrian 
walkways on the waterside of Harborview 
Drive and as permissible remove the sidewalk 
to the west of the Harborview extension up to 
Green Turtle restaurant. 
 
Tarabochia / Cross – unanimously approved. 

C
onsent A

genda - 2a



 
           
          Topic / Agenda Item                                      Main Points Discussed                                  Recommendation/Action  
     Follow-up (if needed) 
 

Parks Commission Minutes Page 2 January 7, 2009 

 
Some bench details provided by Park staff 
were distributed.  The particular styles of the 
benches were chosen for ease of maintenance 
and repair due to vandalism. 
 
Commissioner Tarabochia asked for 
consideration of a few more items at the street 
end which included: 

• Park lighting and street lights 
• Removing the concrete planters 
• Fencing alternatives 
• Preference parking for beach residents 
• Removable bollards 

 
 
 

Parks Appreciation Day (PAD) 2009 Commission Chair Perrow discussed the 
possible park projects and the Commission 
came up with some community groups to 
contact about volunteering for PAD.   

City staff will ask that PAD information be 
provided again in City utility bills. 
 
Commissioners will seek support from 
community groups. 

NEW BUSINESS:   
Cushman Trail & Tie-In to Donkey Creek Commission Chair Perrow mentioned that a tie 

in to the new Cushman Trail from the WWTP 
has been discussed in the past and would like 
to have that link considered for an informal 
trail. 

City staff will provide Commission with a parcel 
map showing the area between the WWTP 
and the Cushman Trail property. 

Parks No Smoking Policy Commission Chair Perrow asked that City staff 
be reminded of the “No-smoking Policy” in the 
parks. 

 

KL Marvin Veterans Memorial Park Public Works Director Stubchaer explained the 
changes that have been made to the plans for 
the restroom and shelter that will be 
constructed by City staff. 

 

2009 Budget Update Public Works Director Stubchaer briefly 
reviewed the approved 2009 Parks budget. 

Commissioner Goodwill asked that mitigations 
for budget cuts to summer help be discussed 
at the next Parks Commission meeting. 

PARK UPDATES:   
PUBLIC COMMENT: None  
NEXT PARKS MEETING:  February 4, 2009 @ 5:30 p.m. 
 

C
onsent A

genda - 2a



CITY OF GIG HARBOR 
COMMITTEE OUTLINE MINUTES 

 
Parks Commission 

 
 

Date: February 4, 2009_________        Time:  5:30 p.m.        Location: Community Rooms A&B          Scribe:_Terri Reed 
 
Commission Members and Staff Present: Commissioners: Michael Perrow, Nick Tarabochia, Jacquie Goodwill, Peter Hampl and 
Emily Cross; Staff Members: David Stubchaer and Terri Reed. 
 
Others Present: _____________________________________________________________________________________  
 

Page 1 
 

Topic / Agenda Item Main Points Discussed Recommendation/Action 
Follow-up (if needed) 

Approval of Minutes Approval of January 7, 2009 Minutes Tabled until March meeting due to draft of 
minutes not being available for review. 

OLD BUSINESS:   
PROS Plan Update City Planner, Kristin Moerler, distributed a 

tentative timeline for the PROS Plan update.  
She has been assigned as the City staff lead 
to work on this project.  She asked if the 
Commission preferred to have longer meetings 
or additional meetings in order to be able to 
cover the parks information as she has it 
available for their review. 
 
The proposed survey and methods of 
distribution were discussed.  Member Goodwill 
talked about her concerns with getting a 
random population sample and public input. 

The Parks Commission prefers that the regular 
first Wednesday of the month meeting be used 
for the PROS Plan work.  The meetings can be 
lengthened, if necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Moerler will bring the draft survey before 
the Parks Commission at their March meeting. 

Parks Appreciation Day (PAD) 2009 Commission Chair Perrow gave an update on 
the planning for PAD.  A request for 100 
Douglas Fir seedlings for Gig Harbor was 
made at the Metro Parks Tacoma meeting. 
 
Five City parks were selected for PAD project 
work.   
 
Wade Perrow Construction, LDS Church, 
Rotary and the volleyball group have been 

City Park staff will be consulted for project 
priorities. 
 
Staff will find out possible location for 
seedlings. 
 
The Parks selected were: 

• Wilkinson Farm Park 
• Austin Estuary Park 
• BMX/Volleyball/Crescent Creek Park 

C
onsent A

genda - 2a



 
           
          Topic / Agenda Item                                      Main Points Discussed                                  Recommendation/Action  
     Follow-up (if needed) 
 

Parks Commission Minutes Page 2 February 4, 2009 

contacted for volunteers for PAD. • Donkey Creek Park 
• Adam Tallman Trail 

Cushman Trail & Donkey Creek Tie-in Locations for a possible trail connection 
between the Cushman Trail and Donkey Creek 
Park through the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
property were reviewed. 

Public Works Director Stubchaer will take a 
field trip with interested Commission members 
to check out the terrain of this area. 

NEW BUSINESS:   
Mitigation for Summer Help Budget Cuts Member Goodwill explained her idea for a 

request to citizens to supplement City flower 
planters and hanging baskets and 
maintenance of them.  She mentioned 
something like an Adopt-A-Planter program. 

Member Goodwill will contact Laureen Lund 
about getting some press and public input for 
ideas. 
 
Staff will check with the City Attorney about 
possible program paperwork required. 
 
Staff will gather information on the number of 
planters and baskets the City has had in past 
years.  

PARK UPDATES:  The Parks Commission will send thank you 
letters to the Friends of Wilkinson Farm and 
YMCA Friends and Servants groups for their 
recent work in Wilkinson Farm Park. 

 Commission Chair Perrow asked the status of 
the Wheeler Street End. 

Staff will check with the City Attorney on the 
progress made to date on determining 
ownership of the property. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: None  
NEXT PARKS MEETING:  March 4, 2009 @ 5:30 p.m. 
ADJOURN  Motion to adjourn at 6:45 p.m. 

 
Hampl / Goodwill 

 C
onsent A

genda - 2a



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



Consent Agenda - 2b



   

                                  

OUTLINE MINUTES 
Salary Commission 

 
Date: March 11, 2009   Time: 8:00 a.m.    Location: Executive Conf. Room       Scribe: Molly Towslee 
 
Members Present:  Harris Atkins, Gregory Roberts, Richard Jasper, and Tony Michaelson      Absent:  Keith Hamilton 
 
Staff Present:  David Rodenbach, Finance Director, and Molly Towslee, City Clerk         
 
Topic Recommendation/Action Follow-up (if needed) 
 
Approval of Minutes 

Move to approve Minutes of November 13, 2008 
Jasper / Atkins – unanimously approved. 

 

 
Bylaws 

 
Clerk Towslee explained that she had contacted several of the 
cities that have Salary Commissions to locate a copy of their 
Salary Commission Bylaws but found that the other cities have 
no formal bylaws. The Commission agreed the code is 
sufficient and there is no further need to pursue the adoption of 
bylaws. 
 

 

 
Future action on 
Council / Mayor 
Salaries 
 

The Commission discussed the economy and the city’s budget 
shortfalls. David Rodenbach gave an overview of the financial 
forecast and discussed alternatives to increase revenues. He 
also discussed the reasoning behind the comparison cities 
used in the city’s salary survey which include budget size, 
amenities and proximity to Gig Harbor (meaning whether the 
city would lose employees to surrounding, more competitive 
jurisdictions). 
 
It was unanimously agreed that the Mayor and City 
Councilmembers are underpaid for the job that they do but a 
decision was made to defer taking action due to the economic 
conditions. 

 
 

C
onsent A

genda - 2c



   

                                  

Topic Recommendation/Action Follow-up (if needed) 
 
It was agreed that this would be a perfect time to adjust the 
salaries being an election year in which four terms come due, 
but it was also noted that it would become a political issue 
because of the economy. 
  
They discussed how the workload has increased in complexity 
and time commitment since the salaries were frozen in 1996. 
 
Commission members agreed to move forward by assessing 
the Mayor and Councilmembers time commitment. This will 
enable them at some future time to recommend salaries that 
reflect the increased workload and to be more in step with 
other comparable cities.  
 
They also felt it is important for the citizens to know how much 
time their Councilmembers spend on city business. 
 
A point was made that the citizens expect their Council to 
participate in regional politics, and there should be financial 
incentives to do so. 
 

 
 
 
Clerk Towslee was requested 
to do an informal survey of the 
Mayor and Councilmembers 
to determine how much time 
they spend on city business.  
 
Later in the year the Salary 
Commission will meet again 
for an update on the budget.  

Adjourn 
 

Meeting adjourned at 9:15 a.m. Next meeting to be scheduled 
in October, 2009. 

 

C
onsent A

genda - 2c



 
 

 
                                                                                                                                   
                          Chuck Hunter, Mayor                                                                            Date             

PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR 
  OF THE CITY OF GIG HARBOR  
 
 

WHEREAS, parks, playgrounds, nature trails, open spaces, community and cultural centers, and historic sites 
make a community attractive and desirable places to live, work, play and visit to contribute to our ongoing economic 
vitality; and 
 
 WHEREAS, parks are a place where people can reflect, re-energize or socialize; a place where everyone is 
welcome; and a place that builds community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, parks, greenways and open spaces provide a welcome respite from our fast paced, high-tech 
lifestyles while protecting and preserving our natural environment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, numerous jurisdictions, cities and organizations have joined together to create an event that 
encourages citizens to celebrate the value and enhanced quality of life that parks bring to our communities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, many businesses, benefactors, organizations and donors have provided sponsorships and donations 
to support this event that will bring citizens together to support their local parks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, hundreds of people of all ages have pledged to volunteer their time to clean-up and beautify parks 
and open space throughout Gig Harbor and Pierce County on Saturday, April 18, 2009;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Charles L. Hunter, Mayor of the City of Gig Harbor, hereby designate April 18, 2009, as  
 

PARKS APPRECIATION DAY 
 
 
and encourage all citizens to celebrate by participating in this event and visiting their local parks and other regional 
parks throughout Pierce County. 

C
onsent A

genda - 3a



Consent Agenda - 3b



Consent Agenda - 3b



Consent Agenda - 4a



Consent Agenda - 4b



Consent Agenda - 5



Consent Agenda - 5



Consent Agenda - 6



Consent Agenda - 6



Consent Agenda - 7



Consent Agenda - 7



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 8



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 9



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 10



Consent Agenda - 11



Consent Agenda - 11



Consent Agenda - 11



Consent Agenda - 11



Consent Agenda - 11



Consent Agenda - 11



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1



Old Business - 1









Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



Old Business - 2



New Business - 1



New Business - 1



New Business - 1



New Business - 1


	CVRPAGE.pdf
	CC Agenda 03-23-09.pdf
	CA-1 CC Minutes 03-09-09.pdf
	CA-2a Parks 01-07-09 Minutes.pdf
	CA-2a Parks 02-04-09 Minutes.pdf
	CA-2b GHPD Monthly Report.pdf
	CA-2c SC Minutes 03-11-09.pdf
	CA-3a Parks Appreciation Day.pdf
	CA-3b AWC Retro Refund Check.pdf
	CA-4a LL Renewals.pdf
	CA-4b LL Priviledge Inn at GH.pdf
	CA-5 Surplus Equipment.pdf
	CA-6 HEX Amendment to Contract.pdf
	CA-7 Reappoint GHAC.pdf
	CA-8 Borgen Parcel for Cushman Trail.pdf
	CA-9 Public Art Placement.pdf
	CA-10 HW Signal Project.pdf
	CA-11 WWTP Phase I Change Order 1.pdf
	OB-1 O-Harbor Hill Latecomer Agreement.pdf
	OB-2 O-Burnham Sehmel Annexation.pdf
	NB-1 O-Drug Investigation Fund.pdf



